
 
 

 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

Meeting: ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Date and Time: THURSDAY, 13 AUGUST 2020, AT 2.00 PM* 
 

Place: SKYPE MEETING - ONLINE 
 

Enquiries to: E-mail:  karen.wardle@nfdc.gov.uk 
Tel: 023 8028 5071 
 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 
*Members of the public may speak in accordance with the Council's public 
participation scheme: 
(a) immediately before the meeting starts, on items within the Panel’s terms of 

reference which are not on the public agenda; and/or 
(b) on individual items on the public agenda, when the Chairman calls that item. 

Speeches may not exceed three minutes.   
 
Anyone wishing to speak should contact the name and number shown above no later 
than 12.00 noon on Monday, 10 August 2020.  This will allow the Council to provide 
public speakers with the necessary joining instructions for the Skype Meeting. 
 
Bob Jackson 
Chief Executive 
 
Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA 
www.newforest.gov.uk 
 
This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 Apologies 

1.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To note any declarations of interest made by members in connection with an 
agenda item.  The nature of the interest must also be specified. 
 
Members are asked to discuss any possible interests with Democratic Services 
prior to the meeting. 
 
 



 
 

2.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 To note any issues raised during the public participation period. 
 

3.   A VISION FOR THE WATERSIDE (Pages 5 - 24) 

 To consider the proposed draft document, “A Vision for the Waterside”. 
 

4.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  

 

 

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL – VIRTUAL MEETINGS 

Background 

This meeting is being held virtually with all participants accessing via Skype for Business. 

A live stream will be available on YouTube to allow the press and public to view meetings in 

real time and can also be found at the relevant meeting page on the Council’s website. 

Principles for all meetings 

The Chairman will read out Ground Rules at the start of the meeting for the benefit of all 

participants.  All normal procedures for meetings apply as far as practicable, as the new 

Government Regulations do not amend any of the Council’s existing Standing Orders. 

The Ground Rules for all virtual meetings will include, but are not limited to, the following:- 

 All participants are reminded that virtual public meetings are being broadcast live on 

YouTube and will be available for repeated viewing.  Please be mindful of your 

camera and microphone setup and the images and sounds that will be broadcast on 

public record. 

 All participants are asked to mute their microphones when not speaking to reduce 

feedback and background noise. Please only unmute your microphone and speak 

when invited to do so by the Chairman. 

 Councillors in attendance that have not indicated their wish to speak in advance of 

the meeting can make a request to speak during the meeting by typing “RTS” 

(Request to Speak) in the Skype chat facility.  Requests will be managed by the 

Chairman with support from Democratic Services.  The Skype chat facility should not 

be used for any other purpose. 

 All participants should note that the chat facility can be viewed by all those in 

attendance. 

 All participants are asked to refer to the report number and page number within the 

agenda and reports pack so that there is a clear understanding of what is being 

discussed at all times. 

Voting 

When voting is required on a particular item, each councillor on the committee will be called 

to vote in turn by name, expressing their vote verbally.  The outcome will be announced to 

the meeting.  A recorded vote will not be reflected in the minutes of the meeting unless this 

is requested in accordance with the Council’s Standing Orders. 

By casting their vote, councillors do so in the acknowledgement that they were present for 

the duration of the item in question. 

 



 
 

Technology 

If individuals experience technical issues, the meeting will continue providing that it is 

quorate and it is still practical to do so.  The Chairman will adjourn the meeting if technical 

issues cause the meeting to be inquorate, the live stream technology fails, or continuing is 

not practical. 

Public Participation 

Contact details to register to speak in accordance with the Council’s Public Participation 

Procedures are on the front page of this agenda. 

In order to speak at a virtual meeting, you must have the facility to join a Skype for Business 

Meeting.  Joining instructions will be sent to registered speakers in advance of the meeting. 

The Council will accept a written copy of a statement from registered speakers that do not 

wish to join a Skype Meeting, or are unable to.  The statement will be read out at the 

meeting and should not exceed three minutes.  Please use the contact details on the agenda 

front sheet for further information. 

 
 

To: Councillors: Councillors: 
 

 
 Steve Rippon-Swaine (Chairman) 

Sue Bennison (Vice-Chairman) 
Ann Bellows 
Geoffrey Blunden 
Allan Glass 
 

Andrew Gossage 
Stephanie Osborne 
Tony Ring 
Derek Tipp 
Malcolm Wade 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ENVIRONMENT AND OVERVIEW SCRUTINY PANEL – 18 AUGUST 2020   

 

A VISION FOR THE WATERSIDE  
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

  

1.1 Given the significance of the Waterside and the level of development proposed in 
our Local Plan and the National Park Local Plan an informal public-private Steering 
Group and a public sector officer group has been formed between New Forest 
District Council (NFDC), the National Park Authority (NPA), Hampshire County 
Council (HCC), the Solent LEP and the major landowners: ABP, ExxonMobil, Solent 
Gateway, Barker Mill Estates and Fawley Waterside.    

 
1.2 Whilst the Local Plan sets out the vision for growth across the Waterside it has been 

agreed between officers from HCC, NFDC and the NPA that there is a need for a 
high level document that both the public and private sector parties can be 
signatories to that sets out the shared vision of the opportunity across the whole of 
the Waterside. 

 
1.3 As the Local Plan is now adopted it is now the appropriate time to share the draft,  

“A Vision of the Waterside” document, attached as Appendix 1. The document has 
been prepared as a collaborative document with officers from the County and the 
National Park Authority.    

 
1.4 It is intended that the document is a very high level document that sets out a 

collective assessment of the cumulative impact of the development aspirations, and 
an understanding of the total infrastructure needed to support and enable the growth 
plans for the area, together with the economic, social and environmental outcomes 
that need to be addressed as part of the shared vision.   

 
1.5 It is stressed that this document does not contain detail and that is not the intent of 

the document. A significant amount of technical detail exists within the Local Plan 
and its supporting evidence base. More detailed workstreams will follow around 
specific issues.      

 
1.6 Officers from each authority feel it is critical that there is a simple document that sets 

out in bullet form the issues that need to be addressed and the outcomes that need 
to be achieved across the area. It is envisaged that this document, amongst other 
things, will be used to support bids most notably the bid currently being prepared by 
the County for funding for improvements to the A326. It is considered critical to the 
success of this bid that there is a document that demonstrates that all three 
authorities have a shared vision for the area set out in a simple high level document.   
It is anticipated that further detailed workstreams will flow from the document.        

 
1.7 Hampshire County Council and the National Park Authority will take the draft 

document through its own decision making process. 
 
1.8 The Environment and Overview Scrutiny Panel are asked to consider the content of 

the draft document and identify any amendments it considers necessary to 
summarise the outcomes that all three authorities want to achieve across the 
Waterside. It is stressed that this is a very high level document and sets out 
headlines rather than detail. Officers will be giving consideration to more detailed 

5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

workstreams needed to support the delivery of environmental, economic and social 
outcomes set out in the Local Plan.                         

 
2.  CONCLUSION  
 
2.1 This high level document sets out the infrastructure needed to support sustainable 

growth across the Waterside and sets out a list of environmental, economic and 
social outcomes that need to be achieved for the Waterside.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

3.1 There are no additional financial implications arising.  

   

4. CRIME & DISORDER, ENVIRONMENTAL, DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

 

4.1 There are no crime and disorder, environmental or data protection issues arising 

directly from this report.   

  

5. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS  

 

5.1 There are no equality or diversity implications arising directly from this report.    

 

6. DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

 

6.1 None.  

 

7. RECOMMENDATION 

 

7.1 That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel advise Cabinet of its views on the 

Vision of the Waterside document attached as Appendix 1.   

 

 

 

 

Further Information 

Claire Upton-Brown  

Claire.upton-brown@NFDC.gov.uk 

Tel: 023 8028 5345 

 

    

         

6

mailto:Claire.upton-brown@NFDC.gov.uk


A Vision for the Waterside 

APPENDIX 1

7



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

1 
DRAFT 02.0 

Contents  
 

• Executive Summary  

• The National Context 

• A Shared Vision for the Waterside 

• The Place 

• Socio-Economic Profile 

• The Growth Opportunity    

• Economic Outcomes 

• Environmental Outcomes 

• Environmental Infrastructure 

• Social and Community Outcomes 

• Strategic Approach to Transport  

• What We Need  

   

8



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

2 
DRAFT 02.0 

Executive Summary 
 

The Waterside is situated on the west side of Southampton Water and is the home to nationally significant infrastructure and 
industrial assets which play a critical role in the UK economy. We have ambitious plans to support the growth of our economy and 
provide much needed homes, but also to deliver this in a way that enhances the special environment of the area. We believe the 
Waterside has the potential to become a national exemplar for delivering growth in an environmentally sensitive area. Totton is the 
main town within the Waterside.   

The Growth Opportunity 

• Fawley Refinery (ExxonMobil) – the UK’s largest refinery, representing 20% of UK capacity, with a major ongoing investment 
programme encompassing increased output of ultra-low sulphur diesel; 

• Fawley Waterside – the former Power Station and one of the largest brownfield development sites in the South of England, 
with plans to deliver a new sustainable community and centre of marine and maritime innovation;   

• Marchwood Military Port (Solent Gateway) – the UK’s only combined military and commercial port, with plans to deliver 
significant commercial space utilising existing on-site rail infrastructure and deep-water dock capacity;  

• Port of Southampton expansion (ABP) – has proposals to develop a deep-water port providing extra capacity for the UK’s 
leading export port;   

• New homes – offering development capacity for 5000 new homes 

What help do we need to make this happen? 

• Investment in the A326 to reduce congestion, improve journey time reliability and connectivity to the wider UK economy; 
• Investment that enhances choice and the accessibility of public transport, cycling and walking routes; 
• Investment in Environmental Infrastructure to support connectivity for people, places and nature  

 
 

 

9



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

3 
DRAFT 02.0 

The National Context 
 
Situated on the west side of Southampton 
Water, and facing the Port of Southampton, the 
Waterside is the home to nationally significant 
infrastructure and industrial assets which play a 
critical role in the UK economy. The area sits 
between Southampton Water and the New 
Forest National Park  
Totton and the Waterside gains access 
principally from the M27, with connectivity 
through to the M3 and A34, providing an 
important road link to the automotive sector in 
the West Midlands. The main distributor road 
within the Waterside is the A326.    
 
Bournemouth and Southampton airports lie 
close to the Waterside, providing air 
connections to the UK and mainland European 
destinations. The Waterside is close to 5 
universities including Russell Group Member, 
the University of Southampton. 
 
The Port of Southampton is the UK’s leading 
export port and plays a significant role in 
enabling significant vehicle exports, 
underpinning the UK automotive sector of the 
West Midlands and beyond.  
 

10



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

4 
DRAFT 02.0 

Aside from the New Forest National Park, the area also benefits from a number of national and international nature 
conservation designations that include the New Forest SSSI, the Solent and Southampton Water SPA and Ramsar site.     
 
Southampton Water is a unique natural deep-water harbour, having a unique double tide which allows unrestricted access 
for the world’s largest vessels.  
 
The main landside operational area of the Port of Southampton is located within the City of Southampton, and the port 
operators Associated British Ports (ABP) owns a significant land holding within the Waterside  
 
ABP concluded in its Draft Port of Southampton Masterplan (2016) that the Port of Southampton needs to expand within its 
land holdings on the Waterside.   
 
The area is also home to ExxonMobil, owners and operators of the Fawley refinery, the largest refinery in the UK, 
representing around 20% of UK capacity. The refinery supplies fuel directly, via pipelines, critical international airports 
including Birmingham, Heathrow and Gatwick. 
 
To the south of the refinery is the former Fawley Power Station, one of the largest brownfield regeneration opportunities in 
the south of England. The vision for Fawley Waterside is a new ‘smart town’, with 1500 new homes and deep-water access 
to enable the development of a centre of excellence in marine and maritime innovation.  
 
Marchwood Military Port, the UK’s only combined military and commercial port, is operated by Solent Gateway, is now being 
developed for more commercial uses, with an emerging masterplan for up to £400M of future investment. The site benefits 
from extensive developable land and existing rail and port connectivity.  
 
Over 5000 homes will be built within the Waterside over the next 10 to 15 years.   

  

11



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

5 
DRAFT 02.0 

A Shared Vision for the Waterside 
 

The whole of Totton and the Waterside falls within the administrative boundaries of the Hampshire County Council and the Solent 
LEP;  the majority of the Totton and the Waterside area lies within the administrative boundary of the New Forest District Council, 
with the remaining part lying in the New Forest National Park Authority area. 

A public-private consortium has been formed between the 3 statutory authorities, the Solent LEP and the major landowners: ABP, 
ExxonMobil, Solent Gateway, Barker Mill Estates and Fawley Waterside.    
 
It is agreed that to achieve economic growth in an innovative way this internationally important and sensitive nature conservation 
area must be enhanced to create a flagship area where people, the economy and the environment thrives. 
 
This document sets out our shared vision of the opportunity across the whole of Totton and the Waterside, our collective 
assessment of the cumulative impact of the development aspirations,  and our understanding of the total infrastructure needed to 
support and enable the growth plans for the area, to be delivered in a way compatible with the shared vision.   
 
This is a blueprint for how to deliver growth in an environmentally sensitive area.   

    
To achieve economic growth in an innovative way that enhances this internationally important and sensitive 
nature conservation area creating a flagship area where people, the economy and the environment thrives. 
 

 

 

 

 

12



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

6 
DRAFT 02.0 

The Place 
 
The Waterside is a unique area between two internationally 
protected nature conservation areas, Southampton Water and 
the highly protected landscape of the New Forest National Park. 
The most significant settlement is Totton; the communities of 
Marchwood, Hythe and Fawley also lie within this area, together 
with nationally significant infrastructure and industrial assets 
which include Marchwood Military Port, the Fawley Refinery and 
former Fawley Power Station site. The whole area provides a 
setting to the New Forest National Park. Key opportunities for 
environmental infrastructure have been identified through this 
vision, supporting anticipated development in the area and 
delivering environmental net gain. Physical infrastructure is also 
needed to ensure that the area can deliver sustainable growth 
and support the economy, both locally and nationally. 
 
The A326 is the main strategic road that provides access 
to/from the M27, with a high level of outward and inward 
commute resulting in congestion at peak periods.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

13



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

7 
DRAFT 02.0 

Socio-Economic Profile  
 

• Totton and the Waterside is the most urbanised, industrial and densely 
populated sub-area of the New Forest 

• The levels of economic prosperity in Totton & the Waterside are over a 
fifth below the national average. 

• Totton & Waterside has a skills gap, in terms of residents with degree or 
higher qualifications, with the UK average of almost 6%.   

• Totton & Waterside has a large (5%) and increasing gap with the national 
average in terms of residents with higher-skilled occupations.  

• In terms of commuting, Totton & the Waterside experiences a net outflow 
of people (7,200), with some 69% of commuting by car or van. 

• The local economy is characterised by concentrations of manufacturing 
and distribution-related activities, with manufacturing primarily 
concentrated in lower value-added activities.  

• Totton & Waterside and New Forest suffers from a low proportion of 
knowledge intensive employment. Sectors such as ICT and 
finance/insurance are significantly underrepresented in the area relative 
to the UK and Hampshire. 

• In terms of sectors, the Waterside has, unsurprisingly, a high 
concentration of marine and maritime businesses, but with a trend of 
decline of the sector (around 6.9% per annum in employment terms 
between 2010 and 2016). 

Economic prosperity in New Forest relative to UK average 

14



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

8 
DRAFT 02.0 

The Growth Opportunity  
 

The development aspirations for the New Forest 
District area have been confirmed in the Local 
Plan adopted in July 2020. The Plan demonstrates 
how some 5000 new homes creating 3 new 
communities and 18 hectares of employment land 
can be delivered within Totton and the Waterside.  

The Plan references the use of Marchwood Port 
for commercial, economic and local employment, 
and notes the potential expansion of the Port of 
Southampton which could provide opportunity for 
significant economic growth within the area. 

Together with the National Park’s recently adopted 
Local Plan, the Plan promotes the regeneration of 
the former Fawley Power Station for a new mixed-
use community of 1500 homes, 10 hectares of 
employment with deep water access.           

The Waterside is also home to the Fawley 
Refinery, operated by ExxonMobil. This is the 
UK's largest refinery, representing 20% of the 
UK's refinery capacity. Significant investment is 
planned in the plant to shift to production of ultra-
low sulphur diesel.    

15



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

9 
DRAFT 02.0 

Economic Outcomes  
 

The overall economic benefits that will be delivered from our growth plan are:    

• up to 6,700 new jobs with a significant proportion in the Waterside area  

• Up to £566M per annum increase in GVA   

• Improve the quality of jobs within the area by creating more knowledge intense 
employment  
 

• Create training and development opportunities through growth to upskill the local 
population  
 

• Unlocking over £3bn of private sector investment in the area  
  

Wider economic benefits associated with the growth plan along the Waterside includes; 

• Improving UK energy security and the UK balance of payments 

• Supporting global export sales for the UK automotive sector through the ABP 
proposed port expansion, safeguarding the UK’s export competitiveness 

Totton and the Waterside also offers the potential to strengthen the already prominent 
marine and maritime cluster in South Hampshire which is currently estimated to 
generate an economic value of £5.8bn GVA and support directly and indirectly around 
152,000 jobs (source: CEBR).    

This vision also sees the delivery of 5000 new homes in an area that has seen a low 
level of growth.    

16



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

10 
DRAFT 02.0 

Environmental Outcomes   
 

Totton and the Waterside presents a unique opportunity to lead a national green recovery, embedding the principles set out in the 
Government’s 25 year Environment Plan by delivering a World Class Economy in a Word Class Environment. Our ambition is to 
increase environmental benefits by: 

• Planning, designing and managing the environment as vital infrastructure 

• Investing in Natural Capital  

• Creating a connected green network  

• Connecting the coast to the forest  

• Creating healthy towns and villages   

• Building strong communities and integrating the new with the old   

• Building resilience and adaptivity to climate change  

• Enhanced environmental benefits (environmental net gain)  

• Connected ecological sites and species (nature recovery networks)  

• Creating and enhancing community spaces and places 

• Delivering coastal renaissance in Totton and Waterside village centres 

• Improving cycling and walking and connections to Southampton  

• Linking to Southampton’s Green City Charter  

 
 

17



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

11 
DRAFT 02.0 

Environmental Infrastructure  
 
What is Environmental Infrastructure?  
 
It is a network of natural features.  
 
Why is it important? 
 
With limited space on the Waterside an Environmental 
Infrastructure approach allows us to make the best use of what 
we have now and what we need in the future. 
 
How are we going to harness the benefits of Green 
Infrastructure? 
 
Protecting what we have now, connecting it to other 
Environmental Infrastructure and enhancing it to work better for 
all in the future.  
 
What will it be on the ground? 
  
Ecological Network Enhancement – For example linking 
existing broadleaved woodlands with new hedgerows or linear 
woodland. To help connect the coast to the forest making use 
of existing Environmental Infrastructure and adding sites to 
create links or overcome existing barriers.   
  
Sustainable Transport Network – Creating cycleways and 
improving footpaths to make it easier for people use travel 
without needing to drive.  

 
Neighbourhood Green Infrastructure – Improving existing parks 
and greenspaces to encourage use by all. Creating towns and 
villages that are:  

• easy to walk around to encourage activity and increase 
use,  

• good places to live with treelined streets which improve air 
quality, lower wind speed and provide shade;  

• accessible to improve how people feel and engage the 
community through access to nature, streams and the 
coast; and 

• multifunctional with spaces for sport, recreation and play.  
 
Water Management – With more frequent storms we need to 
increase the amount of water that can be stored upstream by 
managing land to flood to protect homes and businesses 
downstream. We need to improve the quality of the water that 
flows into Southampton Water and the Solent by capturing 
nitrates and phosphates through mechanisms such as special 
wetlands.  

Land Management Opportunities – Land can be managed in 
ways that have greater benefit for the economy, the environment 
and society. By working with landowners, we can change existing 
management practices to increase their benefits, for example 
gains for nature through connecting or buffering important sites.   

18



 

  

19



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

1 
DRAFT 02.0 

Social and Community Outcomes  
 
 

• Significant new knowledge-based employment 
opportunities 

• Investing in skill and training opportunities - significant 
opportunities will be delivered from the proposed growth 
for creating training opportunities for local residents and 
upskilling the existing workforce      

• Improving access to education and training - with better 
transport links across the Waterside and to education 
and training opportunities in Southampton   

• Delivering a mix and range of housing and housing 
tenures providing a wider choice for local residents to 
meet their housing needs and attracting new households 
into the area      

• Promoting health and wellbeing, through the investment 
in green infrastructure and improved walking and cycling, 
creating more resilient communities     

• Improving accessibility and enjoyment of natural green 
space    

• Reusing brownfield sites including the redevelopment of 
the former Fawley Power Station  

  

20



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

1 
DRAFT 02.0 

Strategic Approach to Transport  
 

Our strategic approach to transport needs across the 
Waterside will encompass the following key objectives: 
 

• To develop a fully integrated multimodal transport 
strategy to improve connectivity across the 
Waterside area and with the wider region 

• To reduce dependence on the private car by 
enhancing choice and the accessibility of public 
transport, cycling and walking routes  

• To ensure that all transport improvements account 
for the sensitive environment and habitats of the 
New Forest 

• To provide a high quality cycling and walking 
corridor to and from Southampton and to and from 
Totton to Lepe.  

• To enhance access between communities and to 
key destinations by reducing the barrier the A326 
represents 

• To reduce congestion and improve journey time 
reliability on the A326 by providing critical network 
resilience, especially for the existing national assets 
on the Waterside including the Fawley Refinery and 
Marchwood Military Port and also for the proposed 
growth in the capacity of the Port of Southampton 

• To enhance the efficiency of multi-modal trade 
routes from the Waterside to the manufacturing 
regions of the Midlands and North. 

21



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

2 
DRAFT 02.0 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

22



An Integrated Environmental Infrastructure Vision for the Waterside 
 

3 
DRAFT 02.0 

What we need  

 
• Investment in environmental infrastructure to support connectivity for people, places and nature  

• Investment in the A326 transport corridor to reduce congestion and better connect the Waterside with the wider regional and 
national economy 

• Investment in more sustainable alternatives to the car including cycling and walking, and exploring the future potential for re-
instating passenger services on the Waterside railway line. 

• Investment in 5G digital connectivity across the Waterside area, to enable greater adaptability and innovation in the local 
economy   

• Improvements to Totton town centre to better fulfil its role as the key urban centre for the Waterside and its communities 

 

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 A Vision for the Waterside
	Appendix 1


